



European Forum of Official Gazettes

Directory of legal gazettes in Europe 2007

Manuscript completed in April 2007.

Cataloguing data can be found at the end of this publication.

Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications
of the European Communities, 2007

ISBN 92-78-40434-9

© European Communities, 2007

Reproduction is authorised provided the source is acknowledged.

Printed in Belgium

PRINTED ON WHITE CHLORINE-FREE PAPER

Preface to the second edition

Shortly after the publication of the first edition of this Directory, it became necessary to prepare a second edition. Indeed, many changes have occurred since summer 2006:

- on 1 January 2007 Bulgaria and Romania joined the European Union;
- Montenegro is now an independent State and its legal gazette must be included in the Directory;
- following the recognition of Irish as an official working language and the ensuing change in the order of protocol of the Member States, the country is now entered under Eire/Ireland in the Directory;
- more electronic editions of legal gazettes are now recognised as being official; and
- at the level of the European Forum of Official Gazettes, there are a number of changes to take into account, such as new website (www.forum-official-gazettes) and mailbox (forum-official-gazettes@publications.europa.eu) addresses, amendments to the Statutes and, in June 2007, a new acting Chair.

The aim of this publication, however, remains unaltered, namely to make general information on, and the access to, legal gazettes readily available to a wider readership. The information has been updated to spring 2007. If, despite our best efforts, you discover errors or omissions, please advise the Forum secretariat, so that we may update the information on our website as well as in subsequent editions of this Directory.

April 2007

Damjan Žugelj

Uradni list, Ljubljana
Acting Chair of the

European Forum of Official Gazettes

Contents

Part I: Information on the European Forum of Official Gazettes	7
History and objectives of the Forum	9
Statutes	11
Chair and secretariat 2007–08	13
Meetings	15
Website	16
Part II: Information on legal gazettes	17
European Union	19
Official Journal of the European Union	21
België/Belgique/Belgien/Belgium	22
Bulgaria	23
Česká republika/Czech Republic	24
Danmark/Denmark	25
Deutschland/Germany	26
Eesti/Estonia	27
Éire/Ireland	28
Elláda/Greece	29
España/Spain	30
France	31
Italia/Italy	32
Kypros/Cyprus	33
Latvija/Latvia	34
Lietuva/Lithuania	35
Luxembourg	36
Magyarország/Hungary	37
Malta	38
Nederland/Netherlands	39
Österreich/Austria	40

Polska/Poland	41
Portugal	42
România/Romania	43
Slovenija/Slovenia	44
Slovensko/Slovakia	45
Suomi/Finland	46
Sverige/Sweden	47
United Kingdom	48
EU candidate countries	49
Hrvatska/Croatia	51
Republika Makedonija/Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	52
Türkiye Cumhuriyeti/Republic of Turkey	53
European Free Trade Association (EFTA) countries	55
Ísland/Iceland	57
Liechtenstein	58
Norge/Norway	59
Schweiz/Suisse/Svizzera/Switzerland	60
Other European countries	61
Bosna i Hercegovina/Bosnia and Herzegovina	63
Crna Gora/Montenegro	64
Shqipëria/Albania	65
Srbija/Serbia	66

Part I: Information on the European Forum of Official Gazettes

History and objectives of the Forum

Nearly all countries publish legislation, legal notices and other official announcements in the form of periodicals (official gazettes/official journals). In some countries, there is only one periodical containing all kinds of official information, whereas in others there are separate publications for legislation (legal gazettes) and for legal notices (official gazettes in a narrower sense). Countries with autonomous regions or a federal structure have not only one main legal and/or official gazette at the central State level but also gazettes at the regional or *Länder* levels.

Whatever the nature of the national gazette, there is one obvious trend which applies to nearly all of them, namely the ever-increasing introduction of new technologies in the production and dissemination of legal gazettes: data capturing at source, using the XML standard in the production and distribution of official gazettes, authentication and archiving of the electronic legal gazettes, to mention but a few of these aspects.

Official publishers have become aware of this tendency and realise that they face the same issues as their counterparts in other countries. This realisation gave rise to the idea of creating a common platform with a view to sharing experiences and exchanging information. Hence, the European Forum of Official Gazettes, an informal association of the national organisations responsible for the publication of legal gazettes in Europe, was founded in September 2004. At the outset, membership of the Forum was limited to EU Member States and candidate countries. Since September 2005, the Forum also welcomes observers from other European countries to its annual meetings and its working groups. The secretariat of the Forum is provided by the EU Publications Office in Luxembourg.

In line with its pragmatic objectives, the first task of the Forum has been to collect basic information on all official publishers of the EU Member States, candidate countries and countries admitted as observers. The relevant information is accessible on the Forum website (see page 16) and in the present Directory.

Statutes

Preamble

The directors of the official gazettes of the Member States of the European Union and of the *Official Journal of the European Union*:

- having participated in increasing numbers since 1998 in the symposia organised by the initiators of the project,
- desiring to work together to consolidate links between citizens, businesses and the public authorities of the Member States,
- keen to promote the dissemination and sharing of knowledge gained by each country by contributing to the coordination of strategies and operations of joint interest with a view to a common future,

have decided, having regard to their institutional status, to form the European Forum of Official Gazettes (hereafter 'Forum') with a simple collegiate structure, the provisions of which are as follows.

Article 1 (composition)

The Forum comprises the official gazettes of the Member States of the European Union and of the candidate countries as well as the *Official Journal of the European Union*. Observers from third countries may be invited by the Forum to participate in its work.

Official gazettes with no legal basis for activity in the field of publication of legislation may be invited to join Forum working groups.

Article 2 (aims)

The Forum has the objective of improving the mutual knowledge of the technological progress made by participants and of comparing their respective strategies.

Article 3 (activities)

At least one meeting of the Forum shall be held annually, at which the organisations responsible for the publication of the legal gazette shall be represented by their Director. Delegations are limited to two representatives per country.

The Forum shall promote the pooling of information and experience which may be of general use and maintain an Internet site for the consultation of documents and for dialogue between its members.

The Forum may decide to set up working parties of experts.

Article 4 (organisation)

The Chair of the Forum and organiser of the annual meeting referred to in Article 3 is elected amongst the members of the Forum at the meeting preceding the one where he or she takes office. This determines at the same time the venue of the following meeting.

The Chair of the Forum is assisted by representatives of two other official gazettes, namely his or her predecessor and his or her successor as Chair.

Given its institutional position, the *Official Journal of the European Union* will act as secretariat for the Forum and the working parties. It is responsible for maintaining the Forum's Internet site and, at the request of the Chair, it distributes invitations to meetings, proceedings, minutes and other documents.

Article 5 (agenda)

At the end of each meeting, the main points of discussion planned for the following meeting will be presented by the Chair of the following meeting.

The final draft agenda shall be distributed at least one month before the meeting.

Article 6 (minutes of meetings)

Each of the members of the Forum may publish all or part of the proceedings without this being binding on the participants as a whole.

Any communication posted on the Forum's website must be translated into English so that it can be understood and used effectively.

Article 7 (amendments)

Proposals for amending these Statutes may be submitted to the Chair by delegations. On request of the Chair, the Secretariat shall submit the proposals to the members for adoption via written procedure for which 28 days must be allowed for consideration. If no agreement on the proposed amendments is reached, they shall be included on the agenda of the next Forum meeting and shall be discussed by the members present if the proposing delegation wishes.

Chair and secretariat 2007–08

Acting Chair

Presidents

Mr Aki Hietanen

Director of Information Services
Ministry of Justice
PO Box 25
FIN-0023 Government
Tel. (358-9) 16 06 78 94
Fax (358-3) 16 06 77 30
E-mail: finlex@om.fi

Ms Marika Seppius

Riigi Teataja Department
Deputy Head of the Department
State Chancellery of the Republic of Estonia
Stenbock House
Rahukotu 3
EE-15161 Tallinn
Tel. (372) 693 54 95
Fax (372) 693 54 54
E-mail: riigikantselei@riigikantselei.ee

Vice-Presidents

Mr Damjan Žugelj

Director
Javno podjetje Uradni list Republike Slovenije d.o.o.
Slovenska cesta 9
SLO-1000 Ljubljana
Tel. (386-1) 200 18 21
Fax (386-1) 200 18 25
E-mail: info@uradni-list.sl

Ms Carmen Gomis Bernal

General Director
Boletín Oficial del Estado
Avenida de Manoteras, 54
E-28050 Madrid
Tel. (34) 913 84 16 90
Fax (34) 913 84 17 84
E-mail: info@boe.es

Secretariat

Office for Official Publications of the European Communities

Mr Albrecht Berger

Adviser

(L-86, 4/15)

B-1049 Brussels

Tel. (32-2) 29-57552

Fax (32-2) 29-67032

E-mail: forum-official-gazettes@publications.europa.eu

Meetings

Vienna	8–9 September 2004
Copenhagen	8–9 September 2005
Ljubljana	14–16 September 2006
Helsinki–Tallinn	14–15 June 2007
Madrid	25–26 September 2008
London	September 2009
Vilnius	2010



Website

The European Forum of Official Gazettes website has been open since 1 September 2004.

www.forum-official-gazettes.eu

It contains three sections open to the public and one section open to Forum members.

In its sections which are open to the public, the website covers the following main topics.

Official gazettes

A portal to national official gazettes, including a short description of each official gazette in the EU

About the Forum

Members, organisation, history

Activities

Proceedings of Forum meetings, publications of the Forum and documents of interest

Part II: Information on legal gazettes

European Union





Official Journal of the European Union

Office for Official Publications of the European Communities

Mr Thomas L. Cranfield

Director-General

2, rue Mercier

L-2985 Luxembourg

Tel. (352) 29 29-42222

Fax (352) 29 29-44691

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Office for Official Publications of the European Communities

2, rue Mercier

L-2985 Luxembourg

Tel. (352) 29 29-1

Fax (352) 29 29-44691

E-mail: info@publications.europa.eu

URL

www.publications.europa.eu

Nature

Interinstitutional office

(For administrative purposes, the Office is considered as a directorate-general of the European Commission.)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Official Journal of the European Union,
L series, published in the 23 official
languages

Official gazette

Official Journal of the European Union,
C series and electronic supplement S,
also published in the 23 official
languages

Legal gazette online

URL

www.eur-lex.europa.eu

Availability of texts

PDF from 1998

TIFF from 1952

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



België/Belgique/Belgien/Belgium

Belgisch Staatsblad/Moniteur belge/Belgisches Staatsblatt

Mr Bert Van Damme

Adviser

Leuvenseweg 40-42/Rue de Louvain 40-42

B-1000 Brussels

Tel. (32-2) 552 22 55

Fax (32-2) 511 01 84

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Belgisch Staatsblad/Moniteur belge/ Belgisches Staatsblatt

(Belgian State Gazette)

Leuvenseweg 40-42/Rue de Louvain 40-42

B-1000 Brussels

Tel. (32) 0800 98 809 (free of charge)

Fax (32-2) 511 01 84

E-mail: info.staatsblad@just.fgov.be or

info.moniteur@just.fgov.be

URL

www.staatsblad.be

www.moniteur.be

Nature

Part of the Federal Public Service 'Justice'

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Belgisch Staatsblad/Moniteur belge
(Belgian State Gazette)

Official gazette

Belgisch Staatsblad/Moniteur belge

Legal gazette online

URL

www.staatsblad.be/cgi/welcome.pl

www.moniteur.be/cgi/welcome.pl

Availability of texts

ASCII and PDF from 1997

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes. Distribution to the public has been carried out exclusively online since 2003. Only five paper copies of each gazette are produced (for the Ministry of Justice, Moniteur belge, National Library and National Archive and one for microfilming). A free-of-charge helpdesk for facilitating access to the online version was created on 1 August 2005, and since 15 October 2005 almost every courthouse has been obliged by law to make paper summaries of the official gazette available for the public.

Bulgaria



Darzhaven vestnik

Mr Ivan Gaidarski

Director

Square Alexander Batenberg 1
BG-1169 Sofia
Tel. (359-2) 986 10 76

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Narodno sabranie na Republika Bulgaria

(National Assembly of the Republic of Bulgaria)

Narodno Sabranie Square 2
BG-1169 Sofia
Tel. (359-2) 939 39
Fax (359-2) 981 31 31
E-mail: infocentre@parliament.bg

URL

www.parliament.bg

Nature

Service of the Parliament

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Darzhaven vestnik: ofitsialno pechatno izdanie na Republika Bulgaria — ofitsialen razdel

(State Gazette: the Official Journal of the Republic of Bulgaria — Official section)

Official gazette

Darzhaven vestnik: ofitsialno pechatno izdanie na Republika Bulgaria — neofitsialen razdel

Legal gazette online

URL

dv.parliament.bg (titles only)
www.lex.bg (texts of the latest edition)

Availability of texts

dv.parliament.bg: titles available from May 2005 (free of charge)
www.lex.bg: only the latest edition is available and it can also be obtained via e-mail (free of charge)

Access

See explanations above

Official character?

No



Česká republika/Czech Republic

Ministry of the Interior of the Czech Republic

Mr Emil Horčíčka

Director, Community Law Department

Náměstí Hrdinů 3

CZ-140 21 Prague

Tel. (420-974) 81 72 70

Fax (420-974) 81 68 70

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Ministerstvo vnitra České republiky Odbor komunitárního práva

(Ministry of the Interior of the Czech Republic Community Law Department)

Náměstí Hrdinů 3

CZ-140 21 Prague

Tel. (420-974) 81 72 71

Fax (420-974) 81 68 69

E-mail: okp@mvcz.cz

URL

[www.mvcz.cz/2003/odbor/
kp_odbor_info.html](http://www.mvcz.cz/2003/odbor/kp_odbor_info.html)

Nature

Part of the Ministry of the Interior

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazettes

- *Sbírka zákonů — Sb.*
(Collection of Acts)
- *Sbírka mezinárodních smluv — Sb.m.s.*
(Collection of International Treaties)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.mvcz.cz/2003/rady/sbirka_rady.html

Availability of texts

PDF from 4 April 1945

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Danmark/Denmark

Civilstyrelsen

Ms Nina Koch

General Director

Gyldenløvesgade 11, 2.
DK-1600 Copenhagen V
Tel. (45) 33 92 33 34
Fax (45) 39 20 45 05

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Civilstyrelsen

(Civil Affairs Agency)
Gyldenløvesgade 11, 2.
DK-1600 Copenhagen V
Tel. (45) 33 92 33 34
Fax (45) 39 20 45 05
E-mail: civilstyrelsen@civilstyrelsen.dk

URL

www.civilstyrelsen.dk

Nature

Part of the Ministry of Justice

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Lovtidende
(Official Journal)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.retsinfo.dk/lovtid/lovtid.htm

Availability of texts

HTML from 1995

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No. (An act to amend the Act on the Official Journal has been passed. When the amending act is put into force by decision of the minister of justice, the electronic version will be legally binding.)



Deutschland/Germany

Federal Office of Justice

Ms Eva Schewior

Head of Unit

Verkündung, Normendokumentation

Adenauerallee 99-103

D-53113 Bonn

Tel. (49-228) 99 410 5130

Fax (49-228) 99 410 5595

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Bundesanzeiger Verlagsgesellschaft mbH

(Bundesanzeiger Publishing House Co. Ltd)

Mr Rainer Diesem, CEO

Amsterdamer Straße 192

D-50735 Cologne

Tel. (49-221) 976 68-165

Fax (49-221) 976 68-137

E-mail:

geschaeftsfuehrung@bundesanzeiger.de

URL

www.bundesanzeiger.de

Nature

Private company

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Bundesgesetzblatt (BGBl.)

(German Federal Legal Gazette)

Official gazettes

- *Bundesanzeiger (BAnz)*
(Federal Gazette)
- *Elektronischer Bundesanzeiger (eBAnz)*
(Electronic Federal Gazette)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.bundesgesetzblatt.de

Availability of texts

PDF from 1949 against annual fee

Access

Free of charge: read-only version since 1998

Official character?

No



Eesti/Estonia

State Chancellery of the Republic of Estonia Riigi Teataja Department

Mr Jüri Heinla

Head of the department

Rahukohtu 2

EE-15161 Tallinn

Tel. (372) 693 58 72

Fax (372) 693 57 71

State Chancellery of the Republic of Estonia Riigi Teataja Department

Ms Marika Seppius

Deputy Head of the department

Rahukohtu 2

EE-15161 Tallinn

Tel. (372) 693 54 95

Fax (372) 693 54 54

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Riigikantselei

(State Chancellery)

Stenbock House

Rahukohtu 3

EE-15161 Tallinn

Tel. (372) 693 55 55

Fax (372) 693 55 54

E-mail: riigikantselei@riigikantselei.ee

URL

www.riigikantselei.ee

Nature

Governmental agency

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Riigi Teataja, RT

(State Gazette)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.riigiteataja.ee

Availability of texts

HTML and XML from 1990

Access

Free of charge (including the copying of the first 20 pages at a public library).

Official character?

Yes. From 1 June 2002 the paper and the online versions have been equally official, the paper version is printed for subscribers (all together appr. 150 copies).



Éire/Ireland

Office of the Houses of the Oireachtas

Mr Richard Caffrey

Director

Leinster House

Dublin 2

Ireland

Tel. (353-1) 618 32 67

Fax (353-1) 618 41 03

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Oifig Thithe an Oireachtais / Office of the Houses of the Oireachtas

Leinster House

Dublin 2

Ireland

Tel. (353-1) 618 32 67

Fax (353-1) 618 41 03

E-mail: info@oireachtas.ie

URL

www.opw.ie

www.oir.ie

Nature

Service of the parliament

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Acts of the Oireachtas and statutory instruments are published as separate titles and are not published as part of a legal gazette.

Official gazette

Iris Oifigiúil

(Irish State Gazette)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.irishstatutebook.ie

Availability of texts

PDF

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Elláda/Greece

Ethniko Typografio

Mr Sergios Tsiftis

Secretary-General

Kapodistriou 34

GR-10432 Athens

Tel. (30-210) 520 11 25-6/7/8

Fax (30-210) 520 01 71

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Ethniko Typografio

(National Printing Office)

Kapodistriou 34

GR-10432 Athens

Tel. (30-210) 527 90 00

Fax (30-210) 522 10 04

E-mail: webmaster@et.gr

URL

www.et.gr

Nature

The National Printing House of Greece functions with the legal form of the uniform 'administrative sector' of the Ministry of the Interior, Public Administration and Decentralisation.

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Efimeris tis Kiverniseos tis Ellinikis Dimokratias

Official gazette

Efimeris tis Kiverniseos tis Ellinikis Dimokratias

Legal gazette online

URL

www.et.gr

Availability of texts

From 1976: Laws and Presidential decrees.

From 1986: Ministerial decisions.

Access

Law and Presidential decrees: free of charge (read-only version) since 2000.

Ministerial decisions: free of charge (read-only version) since 2006.

Members of Parliament and State services have free access to all series.

Free access for the public to some special series.

Official character?

No (but the electronic version is considered authentic)



España/Spain

Boletín Oficial del Estado

Ms Carmen Gomis Bernal

General Director

Avenida de Manóteras, 54

E-28050 Madrid

Tel. (34) 913 84 16 90

Fax (34) 913 84 17 84

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Boletín Oficial del Estado

(Official State Bulletin)

Avenida de Manóteras, 54

E-28050 Madrid

Tel. (34) 902 36 53 03

Fax (34) 913 84 17 84

E-mail: info@boe.es

URL

www.boe.es

Nature

Independent organisation reporting to
the Ministry of the Presidency

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Boletín Oficial del Estado

(Official State Bulletin)

Official gazette

Boletín Oficial del Estado

Legal gazette online

URL

www.boe.es

Availability of texts

XML from 1960

PDF from 1998

TIFF from 1875

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No (but the electronic version is
considered as being authentic).



France

Direction des Journaux officiels

Mr Jean-Paul Bolufer

Prefect, Director

26, rue Desaix

F-75015 Paris Cedex 15

Tel. (33-1) 40 58 75 01

Fax (33-1) 40 58 76 10

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Direction des Journaux officiels

(Directorate of Official Journals)

26, rue Desaix

F-75015 Paris Cedex 15

Tel. (33-1) 40 58 75 00

Fax (33-1) 45 79 17 84

E-mail: info@journal-officiel.gouv.fr

URL

www.journal-officiel.gouv.fr

Nature

The Direction des Journaux officiels is a government office working under the authority of the secretary-general of the government (Prime Minister's Office).

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Journal officiel de la République française

(JORF)

(Official Journal of the French Republic)

Official gazette

Journal officiel de la République française

(JORF)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.journal-officiel.gouv.fr

www.legifrance.gouv.fr

Availability of texts

PDF, TIFF, HTML from 1990

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes, since 1 June 2004. (The paper and online versions are equally authentic.)



Italia/Italy

Ministry of Justice

Mr Francesco Nocita

Editor in Chief

Direzione della Gazzetta Ufficiale della Repubblica italiana

Via Arenula 70

I-00186 Rome

Tel. (39) 06 68 89 73 61

Fax (39) 06 68 89 77 82

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

**Ministero della Giustizia —
Direzione della Gazzetta Ufficiale
della Repubblica italiana**

(Ministry of Justice — Directorate
of the Official Gazette of the Italian
Republic)

Via Arenula 70

I-00186 Rome

Tel. (39) 06 68 89 73 61

Fax (39) 06 68 89 77 82

E-mail: gazzettaufficiale@giustizia.it

URL

www.gazzettaufficiale.it

Nature

Part of the Ministry of Justice

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

*Gazzetta Ufficiale della Repubblica
italiana*

(Official Gazette of the Italian Republic)

Official gazette

*Gazzetta Ufficiale della Repubblica
italiana*

Legal gazette online

URL

www.gazzettaufficiale.it

(previous 60 days free of charge)

www.normeinrete.it (free of charge)

dbase.jpzs.it

(archives, subscription based)

Availability of texts

ASCII and PDF from 1989

Access

(See explanations above)

Official character?

No. (A bill has been introduced in
Parliament providing for the legal status
of the electronic version.)



Kypros/Cyprus

Government Printing Office

Mr Christos Demetriades

Director

M. Karaolis Str.

CY-1445 Nicosia

Tel. (357) 22 40 58 00

Fax (357) 22 30 31 75

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Typografio tis Kypriakis Demokratias
(Government Printing Office)

M. Karaolis Str.

CY-1445 Nicosia

Tel. (357) 22 40 58 00

Fax (357) 22 30 31 75

E-mail: director@gpo.mof.gov.cy

URL

www.cygazette.com

Nature

Part of the Ministry of Finance

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

*Epissimi Efimerida tis Demokratias tis
Kyprou*

(Official Gazette of the Republic of
Cyprus)

Official gazette

*Epissimi Efimerida tis Demokratias tis
Kyprou*

Legal gazette online

URL

www.cygazette.com

Availability of texts

From 2004

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes



Latvija/Latvia

Latvijas Vēstnesis, VSIA

Ms Daina Abele

CEO

Bruņinieku 41

LV-1011 Rīga

Tel. (371) 731 06 75

Fax (371) 731 21 90

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Latvijas Vēstnesis, VSIA

(Latvian Herald, Ltd)

Bruņinieku 41

LV-1011 Rīga

Tel. (371) 731 06 75

Fax (371) 731 21 90

E-mail: valde@lv.lv

URL

www.vestnesis.lv

www.likumi.lv

www.lv.lv

Nature

Private company owned by the government (represented by the Ministry of Justice)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Latvijas Vēstnesis

(Latvian Herald)

Official gazette

Latvijas Vēstnesis

Legal gazette online

URL

www.vestnesis.lv

Availability of texts

HTML from 1996, partly XML since 2006

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Lietuva/Lithuania

„Valstybės žinios“

Mr Mintautas Daulenskis

Director

Gynėju g. 8

LT-01109 Vilnius

Tel. (370-5) 239 63 00

Fax (370-5) 239 61 51

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Valstybės įmonė Seimo leidykla „Valstybės žinios“

(The Publishing House of the Parliament of Lithuania 'Valstybės žinios')

Gynėju g. 8

LT-01109 Vilnius

Tel. (370-5) 239 63 00

Fax (370-5) 239 61 51

E-mail: seimo.leidykla@valstybes-zinios.lt

URL

www.valstybes-zinios.lt

Nature

State enterprise owned by the Seimas (Parliament)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

„Valstybės žinios“
(Official Gazette)

Official gazette

„Valstybės žinios“

Legal gazette online

URL

www.valstybes-zinios.lt

(Click on the logo in order to reach the page where you can subscribe to the PDF version.)

Availability of texts

PDF + Microsoft® Word

Access

Subscription for PDF

Free of charge database (Microsoft®

Word) with three working days' delay

Official character?

No



Luxembourg

Ministry of State — 'Prime Minister' Central Legislative Service

Mr Daniel Andrich

Director

43, boulevard F.-D. Roosevelt
L-2450 Luxembourg
Tel. (352) 478 29 50/54/55/62
Fax (352) 47 56 16/46 74 58

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

**Ministère d'État — Service central
de législation, éditeur du Mémorial**
(Ministry of State — Central Legislative
Service, Editor of the 'Mémorial')
43, boulevard F.-D. Roosevelt
L-2450 Luxembourg
Tel. (352) 478 29 56
Fax (352) 47 56 16 or 46 74 58
E-mail: scl@scl.etat.lu

URL

www.scl.lu

Nature

Governmental agency within the
Ministry of State — 'Prime Minister'

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Mémorial A

Official gazette

Mémorial B, C

Legal gazette online

URL

www.legilux.public.lu

Availability of texts

Mémorial A: PDF from 1839
Mémorial B: PDF from 1854 to 1875
and from 1996
Mémorial C (Company Gazette):
PDF from 1996

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Magyarország/Hungary

Magyar Hivatalos Közlönykiadó

Mr László Kodela

President – Director-General

Somogyi Béla u. 6.

H-1085 Budapest

Tel. (36-1) 266 51 91

Fax (36-1) 266 51 90

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Magyar Hivatalos Közlönykiadó

(Hungarian Official Journal Publisher)

Somogyi Béla u. 6.

H-1085 Budapest

Tel. (36-1) 266 92 90

Fax (36-1) 266 51 90

E-mail: kozlony@mhk.hu

URL

www.mhk.hu

Nature

Private company owned by the
government (Prime Minister's Office)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Magyar Közlöny MK

(Hungarian Official Journal)

Official gazette

Magyar Közlöny MK

Legal gazette online

URL

www.magyar kozlony.hu

Availability of texts

ASCII from 1990

PDF from 2000

HTML from 1998

XML from 2002

Other from 1996

Access

All issues from January 2005 free of
charge

Official character?

No



Malta

Dipartiment ta' l-Infommazzjoni (DOI)

Mr Emanuel Abela

Director

3, Castille Place

Valletta

Malta

Tel. (356) 21 22 57 20

Fax (356) 22 00 17 73

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Dipartiment ta' l-Infommazzjoni (DOI)
(Department of Information (DOI))

3, Castille Place

Valletta

Malta

Tel. (356) 21 25 05 50

Fax (356) 21 23 71 70

E-mail: info.doi@gov.mt

URL

www.doi.gov.mt

Nature

Part of a ministry (Prime Minister's Office)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Il-Gazzetta tal-Gvern ta' Malta

(The Malta Government Gazette)

Official gazette

Il-Gazzetta tal-Gvern ta' Malta

Legal gazette online

URL

www.doi.gov.mt

(Click on 'The Malta Government Gazette online')

Availability of texts

PDF from June 2003

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Nederland/Netherlands

Ministry of the Interior and Kingdom Relations

Mr Hans Flier

Deputy Head of Division DTA

Postbus 20011

2500 EA The Hague

Netherlands

Tel. (31-70) 426 61 22

Fax (31-70) 426 76 00

SDU Uitgevers BV

Mr Jan Willem de Koning

Manager Information Services

Postbus 16262

2500 BG The Hague

Netherlands

Tel. (31-70) 378 95 42

Fax (31-70) 799 98 24

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

SDU Uitgevers BV

(SDU Publishers Ltd)

Postbus 20025

2500 EA The Hague

Netherlands

Tel. (31-70) 378 94 94

Fax (31-70) 799 98 24

E-mail: sdu@sdu.nl

URL

www.sdu.nl

Nature

Private company

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazettes

- *Staatsblad*
(State Journal)
- *Staatscourant*
(State Gazette)
- *Tractatenblad*
(Treaties Bulletin)

Official gazette

Nederlandse Staatscourant

Legal gazette online

URL

www.overheid.nl/

www.staatscourant.nl

Availability of texts

PDF from 1995, HTML from 1998, XML from 2003

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No. (The Ministry of the Interior is working on a project concerning the official character of the electronic legal gazette.)



Österreich/Austria

Federal Chancellery Constitutional Service

Ms Helga Stöger

Chief of Department of Legal Information

Ballhausplatz 2

A-1014 Vienna

Tel. (43-1) 531 15-4258

Fax (43-1) 531 09-4258

Wiener Zeitung GmbH

Mr Karl Schiessl

CEO

Wiedner Gürtel 10

A-1040 Vienna

Tel. (43-1) 206 99-290

Fax (43-1) 206 99-100

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Bundeskanzleramt, Verfassungsdienst
(Federal Chancellery, Constitutional Service)

Ballhausplatz 2

A-1014 Vienna

Tel. (43-1) 531 15-4258

Fax (43-1) 531 09-4258

E-mail: v6@bka.gv.at

URL

www.ris.bka.gv.at

Nature

Part of the Federal Chancellery

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Bundesgesetzblatt

(Federal Law Journal)

Official gazettes

Amtsblatt zur Wiener Zeitung (Official Gazette of the Vienna Newspaper) and other official gazettes ('Amtsblätter') published by the Wiener Zeitung

Legal gazette online

URL

www.ris.bka.gv.at

Availability of texts

HTML from 1983 to 2003

PDF from 1945

XML (authentic version of the texts) from 2004

Access

Free of charge.

A value-added service containing all legislation from 1945 onwards is available online (www.digitalegesetze.at); this service is not free of charge.

A PDF version of the respective legal gazettes from 1848 to 1940 is available free of charge at the Austrian National Library (http://alex.onb.ac.at/gesetze_fs.htm). A PDF version of legal gazettes from 1780 to 1848 is also available free of charge (http://alex.onb.ac.at/jgs_fs.htm).

Official character?

Yes, since 1 January 2004. (An official paper version is no longer published, but paper copies are still reprinted by the Wiener Zeitung.)

Polska/Poland



Rządowe Centrum Legislacji

Mr Mariusz Lachowski

Director

Editorial Office of the Journal of Laws of the Republic of Poland and the Official Journal of the Republic of Poland 'Monitor Polski'

Aleje Ujazdowskie 1/3

PL-00-583 Warsaw

Tel. (48-22) 520 08 52

Fax (48-22) 520 05 65

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

**Rządowe Centrum Legislacji
— Redakcja Dziennika Ustaw
Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej
oraz Dziennika Urzędowego
Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej „Monitor
Polski”**

(Governmental Centre for Legislation
— Editorial Office of the Journal of
Laws of the Republic of Poland and
the Official Journal of the Republic of
Poland 'Monitor Polski')

Aleje Ujazdowskie 1/3

PL-00-583 Warsaw

Tel. (48-22) 520 08 52

Fax (48-22) 520 05 65

E-mail: (see the website)

URL

www.rcjl.gov.pl

Nature

Governmental agency

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

*Dziennik Ustaw Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej
(Dz.U.)*

(Journal of Laws of the Republic of
Poland)

Official gazettes

- *Dziennik Urzędowy Rzeczypospolitej
Polskiej „Monitor Polski” (MP)*
(Official Journal of the Republic of
Poland 'Monitor Polski')
- *Dziennik Urzędowy Rzeczypospolitej
Polskiej „Monitor Polski B” (MP-B)*
(Official Journal of the Republic of
Poland 'Monitor Polski B')

Legal gazette online

URL

isip.sejm.gov.pl/prawo/index.html
(‘Internet System of Legal Acts’,
managed by the Polish Parliament,
which contains bibliographic
descriptions of all legislation from 1918
as well as texts from 1995.)

Availability of texts

PDF from 1995

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Portugal

Imprensa Nacional — Casa da Moeda Diário da República

Mr João Esteves Pinto

Administrator

Av. António José de Almeida

P-1000-042 Lisbon

Tel. (351) 21 781 07 00

Fax (351) 21 781 07 32

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Imprensa Nacional — Casa da Moeda, SA

(The Portuguese Official Printing Office
and Mint)

Av. António José de Almeida

P-1000-042 Lisbon

Tel. (351) 21 781 07 00

Fax (351) 21 781 07 32

E-mail: dre@incm.pt

URL

www.incм.pt

Nature

Private company owned by the
government

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Diário da República (DR)
(Journal of the Republic)

Official gazette

Diário da República (DR)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.dre.pt

Availability of texts

PDF from 1960

Access

Free of charge (read-only version)

Official character?

No



România/Romania

„Monitorul Oficial” R.A.

Mr Liviu Alexandru Moraru

General Manager

Str. Parcului No 65, sector 1

RO-012329 Bucharest

Tel. (40-21) 318 51 10 or 318 51 11

Fax (40-21) 318 51 09

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

„Monitorul Oficial” R.A.

(Monitorul Oficial Regie Autonomă)

Str. Parcului No 65, sector 1

RO-012329 Bucharest

Tel. (40-21) 318 51 10 or 318 51 11

Fax (40-21) 318 51 09

E-mail: ramo@ramo.ro

URL

www.monitoruloficial.ro

Nature

Private company of the state (regie), under the coordination of the Chamber of Deputies

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Monitorul Oficial al Romaniei (M.Of.)

— *Partea I*

(Official Gazette of Romania — Part I)

Official gazette

Monitorul Oficial al Romaniei (M.Of.) —

Părțile II-VII

Legal gazette online

URL

www.cdep.ro/pls/legis/legis_pck.frame
(Website of the Consiliul Legislativ —
Legislative Council)

Availability of texts

PDF and/or Word for acts from 1989 to date (and about 2 000 texts in PDF for acts before 1989)

Access

Summary of 'Monitorul Oficial' available on website.

'Monitorul Oficial' in PDF format is delivered by e-mail or request on CD. (www.monitoruloficial.ro)

Official character?

Only the printed format



Slovenija/Slovenia

Javno podjetje Uradni list Republike Slovenije d. o. o.

Mr Damjan Žugelj

Director

Slovenska cesta 9

SLO-1000 Ljubljana

Tel. (386-1) 200 18 21

Fax (386-1) 200 18 25

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Javno podjetje Uradni list Republike Slovenije d. o. o.

(The Public Company of the Official
Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia
d. o. o.)

Slovenska cesta 9

SLO-1000 Ljubljana

Tel. (386-1) 425 14 19

Fax (386-1) 200 18 25

E-mail: info@uradni-list.si

URL

www.uradni-list.si

Nature

Public company owned by the Republic
of Slovenia

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Uradni list Republike Slovenije

(The Official Gazette of the Republic of
Slovenia)

Official gazette

Uradni list Republike Slovenije

Legal gazette online

URL

www.uradni-list.si

Availability of texts

PDF from 1995

HTML from 1995

Access

PDF and HTML free of charge

Official character?

Yes, since 1 January 2006. (The
paper and online versions are
equally authentic, but in the event
of differences concerning the text or
the date of publication, the electronic
edition shall apply.)



Slovensko/Slovakia

Ministry of Justice

Mr Ján Svák

Director General

General Directorate of the Section of Editorial Activities

Námestie slobody 12

SK-811 01 Bratislava

Tel. (421-2) 52 44 28 45

Fax (421-2) 52 44 28 53

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Ministerstvo spravodlivosti Slovenskej republiky

(Ministry of Justice of the Slovak
Republic)

Námestie slobody 12

SK-811 01 Bratislava

Tel. (421-2) 52 44 28 45

Fax (421-2) 52 44 28 53

E-mail: ms.sec.sek@justice.sk

URL

www.justice.gov.sk

Nature

The Section of Editorial Activities, responsible for publication of the legal gazette, is an integral part of the Ministry of Justice of the Slovak Republic.

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Zbierka zákonov Slovenskej republiky

Abbreviation: Z. z.

(Collection of laws of the Slovak
Republic)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.justice.gov.sk

jaspi.justice.gov.sk

Availability of texts

Starting date: 1945

Within 24 hours after the paper edition
is published

HTML and/or PDF

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Suomi/Finland

Ministry of Justice

Mr Aki Hietanen

Director of Information Services

PO Box 25

FIN-00023 Government

Tel. (358-9) 16 06 78 94

Fax (358-9) 16 06 77 30

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Oikeusministeriö/Justitieministeriet
(Ministry of Justice)

Administrative Department

PO Box 25

FIN-00023 Government

Tel. (358-9) 160 03

Fax (358-9) 16 06 77 30

E-mail: finlex@om.fi

URL

www.om.fi

www.finlex.fi

Nature

The Ministry of Justice is a governmental organisation

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

*Suomen säädöskokoelma / Finlands
författningssamling*
(Statutes of Finland)

Official gazette

Virallinen lehti / Officiella tidningen
(The Official Gazette)
Edita Ltd is responsible for the
Official Gazette (legal notices etc.),
which is available at
<http://www.credita.fi/lehdet/virle/>

Legal gazette online

URL

www.finlex.fi

Availability of texts

HTML from 1734

PDF from 1995

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes



Sverige/Sweden

Ministry of Justice

Mr Per-Anders Svensson

Deputy Director

Division for Legal and Linguistic Draft Revision

Rosenbad 4

S-103 33 Stockholm

Tel. (46-8) 405 47 98

Fax (46-8) 54 35 60 64

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Granskningsenheten, Justitiedepartementet

(Division for Legal and Linguistic Draft
Revision, Ministry of Justice)

Rosenbad 4

S-103 33 Stockholm

Tel. (46-8) 405 10 00

Fax (46-8) 20 27 34

E-mail: registrator@justice.ministry.se

URL

www.regeringen.se

Nature

The Division for Legal and Linguistic
Draft Revision is part of the Ministry of
Justice.

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Svensk författningssamling (SFS)
(Swedish Code of Statutes)

Official gazette

Post- och Inrikes Tidningar
(Swedish national Official Journal,
under the responsibility of the Swedish
Companies Registration Office)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.lagrummet.se

Availability of texts

ASCII

PDF

HTML

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No. (The Ministry of Justice is working
on a project concerning the electronic
legal gazette.)



United Kingdom

Office of Public Sector Information

Ms Carol Tullo

Director
Admiralty Arch, North Side
The Mall
London SW1A 2WH
United Kingdom
Tel. (44-207) 276 26 60
Fax (44-207) 276 26 61

Office of Public Sector Information

Mr Alan Pawsey

Head of Publishing Services
St Clements House
2-16 Colegate
Norwich NR3 1BQ
United Kingdom
Tel. (44-1603) 72 30-14
Fax (44-1603) 72 30-00

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Her Majesty's Stationery Office

(Operating within the Office of Public Sector Information)
St Clements House
2-16 Colegate
Norwich NR3 1BQ
United Kingdom
Tel. (44-1603) 72 30-11
Fax (44-1603) 72 30-00
E-mail: hmsopublishing@opsi.x.gsi.gov.uk

URL

www.opsi.gov.uk

Nature

Her Majesty's Stationery Office operates from within the Office of Public Sector Information within the National Archives.

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Acts of Parliament and Statutory Instruments (and the equivalents from the devolved Parliament and Assemblies) are published as separate titles and are not published as part of a legal gazette. There are annual bound editions of both the Statutory Instruments and all the Acts of Parliament produced in a year. These are bound and published in numerical order.

Official gazettes

The *London Gazette*, the *Belfast Gazette* and the *Edinburgh Gazette* (www.gazettes.gov.uk)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/uk.htm

Availability of texts

Acts since 1988, Statutory Instruments from 1987

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes. (Since 2002, legislation published on the Internet has carried the same official status as the printed version.)

EU candidate countries



Hrvatska/Croatia

Narodne novine d.d.

Ms Sanja Perić

Managing Director of Publishing

Ulica Republike Njemačke 6

HR-10 020 Zagreb

Tel. (385-1) 665 28 50

Fax (385-1) 665 28 51

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Narodne novine d.d.

Ivana Šibla 1

HR-10 020 Zagreb

Tel. (385-1) 665 27 77

Fax (385-1) 665 27 70

E-mail: nn@nn.hr

URL

www.nn.hr

Nature

Private company owned by the
government

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

*Službeni list Republike Hrvatske 'Narodne
novine'*

(Official Gazette of Republic of Croatia
'Narodne novine')

Legal gazette online

URL

[www.nn.hr/sluzbeni-list/sluzbeni/
index.asp](http://www.nn.hr/sluzbeni-list/sluzbeni/index.asp)

Availability of texts

HTML from 1990

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Republika Makedonija/ Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

Javno Pretpriятие Služben vesnik na Republika Makedonija

Mr Toni Trajanov

General Manager

Partizanski Odredi 29

Postenski Fah 51

1000 Skopje

Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

Tel. (389-2) 329 88 60

Fax (389-2) 311 22 67

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Javno Pretpriятие Služben vesnik na Republika Makedonija

(Public Enterprise of the Official Gazette
of the former Yugoslav Republic of
Macedonia)

Partizanski Odredi 29

Postenski Fah 51

1000 Skopje

Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia

E-mail: contact@slvesnik.com.mk

URL

www.slvesnik.com.mk

Nature

Public enterprise

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Služben vesnik na Republika Makedonija

Official gazette

Služben vesnik na Republika Makedonija

Legal gazette online

URL

<https://members.slvesnik.com.mk>

Availability of texts

PDF from 1945

Access

Monthly and yearly subscriptions

Official character?

No



Türkiye Cumhuriyeti/Republic of Turkey

T.C. Resmî Gazete

Mr Nadir Özcan

Director-General

Necatibey Road, No 108, 4th floor

TR-06100 Bakanlıklar/Ankara

Tel. (90-312) 294 54 37/38/45/11

Fax (90-312) 231 13 34

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

T.C. Resmî Gazete

(Directorate-General for Development
and Publications of Legislation —
Prime Minister's Office)

Necatibey Road, No 108, 4th floor

TR-06100 Bakanlıklar/Ankara

Tel. (90-312) 294 54 10

Fax (90-312) 231 13 34

E-mail: resmigazete@basbakanlik.gov.tr

URL

rega.basbakanlik.gov.tr

Nature

Part of the Prime Minister's Office

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

T.C. Resmî Gazete

(Turkish Republic Official Journal)

Official gazettes

Various bulletins and official gazettes
are published by several official
organisations

Legal gazette online

URL

rega.basbakanlik.gov.tr

Availability of texts

After 7 July 2000 (some are in text
format, others are in image format)

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes

European Free Trade Association (EFTA) countries



Ísland/Iceland

Stjórnartíðindi

Ms Eygló S. Halldórsdóttir

Director

Skuggasund 3

IS-150 Reykjavík

Tel. (354) 545 90 00

Fax (354) 552 73 40

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Lögbirtingablað og Stjórnartíðindi

(Ministry of Justice and Ecclesiastical Affairs)

Skuggasund 3

IS-150 Reykjavík

Tel. (354) 545 90 00

Fax (354) 552 73 40

E-mail: stjornartidindi@dkm.stjr.is or

logbirtingabladid@tmd.is

URL

www.domsmalaraduneyti.is

Nature

Part of the Ministry of Justice and Ecclesiastical Affairs

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Stjórnartíðindi

Official gazette

Lögbirtingablað

Legal gazette online

URL

www.stjornartidindi.is

www.logbirtingablad.is

Availability of texts

Stjórnartíðindi:

Section A: PDF from 2001

Section B: PDF from 2001 (and some of it in HTML)

Section C: PDF from 1995

Lögbirtingablað: PDF from 2001

Access

Stjórnartíðindi: open for everyone and free of charge

Lögbirtingablað: online access and printed version for paying subscribers only, PDF on homepage free of charge for everyone

Official character?

Stjórnartíðindi:

Yes, since 8 November 2005

Lögbirtingablað:

Yes, since 1 July 2005



Liechtenstein

Rechtsdienst der Regierung

Ms Marion Frick-Tabarelli

Director

Städtle 49

FL-9490 Vaduz

Tel. (423) 236 60 16

Fax (423) 236 60 27

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Rechtsdienst der Regierung

(Government Legal Services)

Städtle 49

FL-9490 Vaduz

E-mail: info@rdr.llv.li

URL

www.rdr.llv.li

Nature

Stabsstelle der Regierung

(Coordination unit of the Government)

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Liechtensteinisches Landesgesetzblatt (LGBL)

Official gazettes

The *Liechtensteiner Vaterland* and *Liechtensteiner Volksblatt* newspapers

Legal gazette online

URL

www.gesetze.li

Availability of texts

HTML from 1863

PDF from 1863

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Norge/Norway

Lovdata

Mr Trygve Harvold

Director

Haakon VII's gate 2

N-0125 Oslo

Tel. (47) 23 11 83 00

Fax (47) 23 11 83 01

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Stiftelsen Lovdata

(The Lovdata Foundation)

Haakon VII's gate 2

Postboks 2016 Vika

N-0125 Oslo

Tel. (47) 23 11 83 00

Fax (47) 23 11 83 01

E-mail: postmaster@lovdata.no

URL

www.lovdata.no

Nature

Private foundation established by the government

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Norsk Lovtidend

(The Norwegian Legal Gazette)

Official gazette

Norsk Lovtidend

Legal gazette online

URL

www.lovdata.no/info/lovtidend.html

Availability of texts

HTML and PDF

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes. (The online version has been the official version since 2001.)



Schweiz/Suisse/Svizzera/Switzerland

Federal Chancellery Competence Centre for Official Publications

Mr Alois E. Balmer

Director

Feldeggweg 1

CH-3003 Bern

Tel. (41-31) 322 24 53

Fax (41-31) 322 58 51

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

Federal Chancellery
Competence Centre for Official
Publications

Division Publications

Feldeggweg 1

CH-3003 Bern

Tel. (41-31) 322 24 53

Fax (41-31) 322 58 51

E-mail: kaweb@mbox.bk.admin.ch

URL

www.admin.ch/ch/d/bk/kav/index_de.html

Nature

Governmental service

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

- *Amtliche Sammlung des Bundesrechts / Recueil officiel du droit fédéral / Raccolta ufficiale delle leggi federali* (Official Compilation of Federal Legislation)
Official gazettes
- *Bundesblatt / Feuille fédérale / Foglio federale* (Federal Gazette)
- *Schweizerisches Handelsamtsblatt / Feuille officielle suisse du commerce / Foglio ufficiale svizzero di commercio* (Swiss Official Trade Journal)

Legal gazette online

URL

www.admin.ch/ch/d/ff/index.html

www.admin.ch/ch/d/as/index.html

www.admin.ch/ch/d/sr/index.html

Availability of texts

PDF from September 1998

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

Yes. (The paper and online version are equally authentic but in the event of differences concerning the text or the date of publication, the paper version of the Official Compilation of Federal Legislation shall apply.)

Other European countries

Bosna i Hercegovina/ Bosnia and Herzegovina



JP NIO Službeni list Bosne i Hercegovine

Mr Nino Hasanović

General Director

Magribija 3

71000 Sarajevo

Bosnia and Herzegovina

Tel. (387-33) 554-160/161/570/571

Organisation responsible for the legal gazette

JP NIO Službeni list BiH

(Official Gazette of Bosnia and
Herzegovina)

Magribija 3

71000 Sarajevo

Bosnia and Herzegovina

Tel. (387-33) 554-160

Fax (387-33) 554-161

E-mail: slist@bih.net.ba or sslist@slist.ba

URL

www.sluzbenilist.ba

www.zakoni.ba

www.proposi.ba

Nature

Public company owned by the
government

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazettes

- *Službeni glasnik BiH*
- *Službene novine Federacije BiH*
- *Službene Glasnik BiH — Međunarodni ugovori*
- *Službene novine Kantona Sarajevo*

Legal gazette online

URL

www.sluzbenilist.ba

Availability of texts

HTML, DOC and PDF since 1992

Access

Priced subscription

Official character?

No



Crna Gora/Montenegro

Službeni list Republike Crne Gore

Director and Editor-in-chief

Novaka Milesova 10/1

81000 Podgorica

Montenegro

Tel. (381-81) 23 05 25

Fax (381-81) 23 05 25

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Službeni list Republike Crne Gore

(Official Gazette of Montenegro)

Novaka Milesova 10/1

81000 Podgorica

Montenegro

Tel. (381-81) 23 05 25

Fax (381-81) 23 05 25

E-mail: sllrcg@cg.yu

URL

www.sllrcg.cg.yu

Nature

Company owned by the government

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Službeni list Republike Crne Gore

(Official Gazette of Montenegro)

Official gazette

Službeni list Republike Crne Gore

Legal gazette online

URL

www.sllrcg.cg.yu

Availability of texts

Titles only

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Shqipëria/Albania

Fletorja Zyrtare

Ms Ardita Alsula

Director

Qendra e Publikimeve Zyrtare

Bul. Zhan D'Ark, prane ish Ekspozitës "Shqipëria Sot"

Tirana

Albania

Tel. (355) 423 29 65

Fax (355) 423 29 65

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Fletorja Zyrtare

Qendra e Publikimeve Zyrtare

(Official Publications Centre)

Bul. Zhan D'Ark, prane ish Ekspozitës

"Shqipëria Sot"

Tirana

Albania

Tel. (355) 423 29 65

Fax (355) 423 29 65

E-mail: info@qpz.gov.al

URL

www.legjislacionishqiptar.gov.al

www.qpz.gov.al

Nature

Governmental agency depending of the Ministry of Justice

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Fletore Zyrtare

Official gazette

Fletore Zyrtare

Legal gazette online

URL

www.legjislacionishqiptar.gov.al

www.qpz.gov.al

Availability of texts

PDF and XML since 2004

Access

Free of charge

Official character?

No



Srbija/Serbia

Službeni glasnik

Mr Branko Gligorić

Director

Kralja Milutina 27

11000 Belgrade

Serbia

Tel. (381-11) 364 44 01

Fax (381-11) 364 06 56

Organisation responsible for the legal and official gazettes

Javno preduzeće Službeni glasnik

(The Public Company Official Gazette)

Kralja Milutina 27

11000 Belgrade

Serbia

Tel. (381-11) 364 44 01

Fax (381-11) 364 06 56

E-mail: kontakt@slglasnik.com

URL

www.slglasnik.com

Nature

The Public Company Official Gazette, established in 1992 by the National Assembly of the Republic of Serbia Act on publication of laws and other enactments and on publication of the Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia.

Legal gazette(s)/ official gazette(s)

Legal gazette

Službeni glasnik Republike Srbije

(Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia)

Službeni glasnik Republike Srbije — Prosvetni glasnik

(Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia — Educational Gazette)

Međunarodni ugovori — International Treaties (!)

Official gazette

Službeni glasnik Republike Srbije

Legal gazette online

URL

www.slglasnik.com

Availability of texts

PDF and/or HTML from 2007

Access

Payable subscription

Official character?

No.

(!) In the process of taking over from Službeni list SRJ — Međunarodni ugovori

European Forum of Official Gazettes

Directory of legal gazettes in Europe — 2007

Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications
of the European Communities

2007 — 66 pp. — 13.2 × 21 cm

ISBN 92-78-40434-9

